Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, SIXTY-SEVENTH MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, September 19, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Tom Moody served as the presiding officer.

Commissioners Bruce Blair and Carl Wood were in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Chairman Moody led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-386) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the September 16, 2025 minutes of the Board of County
Commissioners, and
2. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody
Nays:
Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS
The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:

Motion 25 381 That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the

September 12, 2025 minutes, and Approval of the accounts payable
warrant numbers 640271 to 640547 dated September 15, 2025 in the
total amount of $595,241.85

Motion 25

382

To recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session
for 15 minutes to discuss legal advice which would be deemed
privileged in the attorney-client relationship pursuant to the
consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2), with the
County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim Emerson, Sheriff Billy
Tomasi, and Undersheriff Jason VanBecelaere present. The open
meeting will resume at 10:45 A.M. The motion passed 3-0

Page 1 of 7




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Motion 25 383 To approve the Community Corrections FY 2025 Year End Outcome
and authorizing the Chairman to sign
Motion 25 384 To recess this open session and go into a closed executive session for

15 minutes to discuss cyber insurance pursuant to the matters relating
to security measures, if the discussion of such matters at an open
meeting would jeopardize such security measures that protect a public
body or agency, public building or facility or the information system
of a public body or agency exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(12)(C), and
to include the County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim
Emerson, and IT Director Brandon Spaur. The open meeting will
resume at 11:28 A.M. The motion passed 3-0

Motion 25 385 To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
20 minutes to discuss individual employees job performance pursuant
to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to
protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County
Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson attended the
executive session. The open meeting will resume at 11:47 AM. The
Motion passed 3-0

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Mr. Joshua Albin addressed the Commissioners. Mr. Albin explained there
were surveys that came in after the deadline that he has not included in his presentation
but that he has set them aside to be reviewed at the discretion of the Commissioners. He
explained there are not enough surveys turned in late to affect the results. Mr. Albin
began giving some results of the survey. Mr. Albin then began discussing the renewable
energy questions on the survey. Mr. Albin stated a little over sixty percent was against
wind energy specifically. He also discussed the amount of people who skipped over these
questions.

Item Two: Ms. Melisia Rhodes addressed the Commissioners. She asked Mr. Albin how
many respondents they had in total and Mr. Albin answered 2,303. She then discussed the
population of adults in Crawford County and stated this is just a small portion of those
adults.

Item Three: Mr. Ray Huff asked how many people typically vote in an election and
County Clerk Lisa Lusker answered it is typically less than 20% on a nonpresidential or
non-governor election. He asked what that total would be and she explained it would be
20% of about 20,000. Mr. Albin discussed sampling size and that although this might not
be an overall representation of the county population, it is a representation of those who
care about the topics being discussed. Commissioner Wood stated he disagrees that this

Page 2 of 7




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

survey is not just about one big item and that he thinks other problems are being
addressed with this survey. He wants people to know they did not do this survey just for
one topic. Commissioner Wood asked about storm water and Mr. Albin explained.

Item Four: Mr. Mark Viets addressed the Commissioners. He discussed the questions
regarding zoning and asked what Mr. Albin makes of those answers. Mr. Albin
explained.

Item Five: Ms. Rhodes addressed the Commissioners. She stated because of the Big
Beautiful Bill passed by President Trump that significant construction by Wind and Solar
must be started by July of 2026 and mostly completed by July of 2027. Ms. Rhodes
discussed zoning in western Crawford County stating that those companies could come in
and begin the process according to landowners wishes. Mr. Emerson stated they have a
moratorium in place. Ms. Rhodes stated these companies have very deep pockets and
Commissioner Wood asked her to elaborate on that comment. Ms. Rhodes stated she is
just saying as a county she would not want to be sued and that she is just telling the
Commissioners there is a timeline.

Item Six: Mr. Huff addressed the Commissioners and asked if it was true that as long as
progress was being made towards zoning or not zoning the county they would likely win
in court and Mr. Emerson answered there is no sure way of knowing. Mr. Huff stated it
feels like there is a threat out of the county being sued within the next year and
Commissioner Moody stated he is not worried about being sued. Commissioner Wood
explained the county has insurance.

Item Seven: Ms. Jackie Augustine addressed the Commissioners and introduced herself
as the Executive Director of Audubon of Kansas. She explained constituents of the
county invited her here to speak. She asked if there is an expiration date of the
moratorium and Mr. Emerson answered it is at the end of this year. Ms. Augustine stated
she wants to make sure wildlife is being considered when regulations are being made and
further explained this. Ms. Augustine stated there is very little data on the impacts of
wildlife from wind and solar. She provided the Commissioners with a letter that includes
details of the impacts of wildlife from wind and solar. Commissioner Wood asked if this
is an organization she is representing and Ms. Augustine explained.

Item Eight: Ms. Judy Prince addressed the Commissioners. She discussed the question
regarding the utility development in the county. Ms. Prince also mentioned the majority
being against wind but fewer against solar and she stated she herself may have voted a
different way had she not been more informed about solar and the potential dangers. She
discussed solar batteries bursting into flames spontaneously. Commissioner Wood asked
what Ms. Prince thinks of small nuclear plants and she stated she is not well informed
enough to speak on that at this time but that she has been learning and reading material
over this topic.

Item Nine: Mr. John Prince addressed the Commissioners. He mentioned the main

concern about wind and solar being that it is new technology and cannot be decomposed.
He discussed solar battery fires. Mr. Prince addressed the question from Commissioner

Page 3 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Wood about nuclear plants. Mr. Prince stated that the majority of the county does not
want wind and solar.

Item Ten: Ms. Carol Hammerbacher addressed the Commissioners. She thanked the
Commissioners for holding these meetings and taking into consideration the opinions of
the public. She discussed living on a farm growing up and how they farmed growing up.
She stated today they need more food everywhere and that they need to consider
American farmers and wildlife. Ms. Hammerbacher discussed beef shortage.

Item Eleven: Ms. Becky Willard addressed the Commissioners. She thanked the
Commissioners for allowing the survey and for having Mr. Albin. Ms. Willard asked if
they can have a copy of the survey results and Mr. Albin answered he can post a version
of the results.

Item Twelve: Mr. Charlie Butler addressed the Commissioners. He discussed his past
being in real estate and rental business. He asked why the county needs to spend any
more money when the people have spoken and that they need to zone the county and shut
down the wind and solar. Commissioner Moody asked if he is stating he wants county
wide zoning and Mr. Butler confirmed.

Item Thirteen: Commissioner Wood stated he would like to ask Mr. Albin some
questions. He discussed housing and asked how do they as Crawford County develop
something to get more housing and Mr. Albin answered. Commissioner Wood stated he
thinks the small communities could grow if given the opportunity. Mr. Albin explained
some of the biggest issues with bringing in new business. Commissioner Wood thanked
Mr. Albin. Commissioner Blair stated he disagrees with Mr. Butler on the forcing of
county wide zoning. He asked what Mr. Albin’s take on this and Mr. Albin explained.
Commissioner Wood discussed regulations and used landfills as an example and Mr.
Albin stated there would still be conditional uses. Commissioner Wood asked if they
would have to point out conditional uses and Mr. Albin confirmed. Mr. Albin explained
the zoning process. Commissioner Wood asked if they want to go to county wide zoning
does it have to be voted on or can they just do it and Mr. Emerson answered Mr. Albin
provided the procedure. Commissioner Blair discussed a ballot and Mr. Albin discussed.
Ms. Lusker stated it would have to be a special election. Commissioner Wood asked if
they should extend the moratorium and Mr. Albin stated that is a question for Mr.
Emerson during an executive session. Mr. Albin explained the next steps in the
comprehensive plan process.

Item Fourteen: Ms. Rhodes addressed the Commissioners. She discussed flooding issues
and that KDOT has a million-dollar grant for technical assistance regarding flooding. She
stated the deadline is September 26'. Ms. Rhodes discussed a grant for housing.

Item Fifteen: Ms. Jovanna Brackett-Oetinger addressed the Commissioners. She wanted
to point out that on the survey the majority of the people responding are retired or elderly.
She discussed property taxes being raised and Commissioner Moody explained the mill
levy has been lowered at the county. She expressed she is grateful the Commissioners
allow public comment. Ms. Lusker discussed the homestead program.

Page 4 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners
NEW BUSINESS

Item One: Ms. Lusker presented the ARPA drawdown for September 2025. She
explained these three requests were discussed in a work session this morning.

On motion (25-387) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the ARPA drawdown request for September 2025.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Two: Mr. Emerson provided the Commissioners with some information regarding a
tax payer request. He explained the request is for street lights at the intersection of 610
avenue and US 69 and that this is Commissioner Moody’s district. Mr. Emerson stated he
forwarded the request to Evergy for review and they came back with a proposal for two
street lights as show on the map presented with a cost of $25.08 per light for a total of
$50.16 per month. Commissioner Moody discussed this request briefly. Commissioner
Blair discussed a similar issue at 590" and Highway 7 and Mr. Emerson stated they have
looked into that one other time and that they can check it out.

On motion (25-388) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
approve the street lights in the total amount of $50.16 per month.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Three: Commissioner Blair discussed road and bridge projects. He discussed two
trees on county property that need removed but recommends looking at removing all
four. Commissioner Moody stated now would be the time to deal with it. Commissioner
Wood stated he agrees going out for bid on removal.

Item Four: Commissioner Blair discussed fall festival coming up in Girard and that the
city typically utilizes the gazebo at this time. He mentioned the stairs need addressed and
he asked Mr. Aaron Crozier to take a look at them. Commissioner Blair mentioned
possibly reaching out to someone to put up hand rails on those stairs. Commissioner
Wood asked if they are wooden steps and Commissioner Blair confirmed.

Item Five: Commissioner Wood mentioned a door needing replaced at the barn and he
believes it can be done in house without going out for bid. He asked Commissioner Blair
to notify Mr. Robert Gorentz about this when he calls him regarding the trees.

OLD BUSINESS

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Page 5 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item One: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 15 minutes
to discuss items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client Relationship.

On motion (25-389) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding tax sale litigation which would be deemed privileged in the
attorney-client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A.
75-4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson
present. The open meeting will resume at 12:38 P.M. The motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 12:23 PM and reconvened the
Open Session at 12:33 PM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

Item Two: Commissioner Moody requested an executive session for 10 minutes to
discuss Non-Elected Personnel.

On motion (25-390) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 10 minutes to discuss
CVB pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect
the privacy of the individual employees. The County Commissioners and County
Counselor Jim Emerson attended the executive session. The open meeting will resume at
12:43 PM. The Motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 12:33 PM and reconvened the
Open Session at 12:39 PM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Item One: September 23, 2025 — 9:00 AM Work Session with Ryan Insurance with a
quarterly report.

Item Two: October 3, 2025- 10:00 AM Opening of bids for the Storage Building.
Item Three: October 3, 2025- 10:00 AM Opening of bids for boilers at the Pittsburg

Judicial Center.

Page 6 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners
ANNOUNCEMENTS:

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN
MOTION TO ADJOURN
Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to adjourn
the September 19, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County Commissioners at
12:40 PM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Moody, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 9/22/25 4:00 PM/amended BKW 9/22/25 4:15 PM

Page 7 of 7



